
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN' DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

t;y. +t' ,- >.<>'i~,' -,;; .-' 06 '~07~ ~ 
CASE NO. -. "4 f?J 8· 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. 

ROY M. BELFAST, Jr., 
a/kla "Chuckie Taylor," 
a/kla "Charles Taylor, Jr.," 
a/kla "Charles Taylor II," 

18 U.S.C. § 2340A(c) 
18 U.S.C. § 2340A 
18 U.S.c. § 924(c) 

18 U.S.c. § 2 

a/kla "Charles McArther Emmanuel," 

Defendant. 
__________________________ ~I 

INDICTMENT 

The Grand Jury charges that: 

INTRODUCTORY ALLEGATIONS 
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1. The defendant, ROY M. BELFAST, Jr., a/kla "Chuckie Taylor," a/kla "Charles 

Taylor, Jr.," alkla "Charles Taylor II," a/kla "Charles McArther Emmanuel," was born in 

Boston, Massachusetts, under the name of Charles Emmanuel. 

2. The defendant, ROY M. BELFAST, Jr., a/kla "Chuckie Taylor," a/kla "Charles 

Taylor, Jr.," a/kla "Charles Taylor II," a/kla "Charles McArther Emmanuel," had his name 

legally changed to Roy McArthur Belfast, Jr. on January 30, 1990. 



3. The defendant, ROY 1\'1. BELFAST, Jr., a/kla "Chuckie Taylor," a/kla "Charles 

Taylor, Jr.," a/kla "Charles Taylor II," a/kla "Charles McArther Emmanuel," is present in 

the United States, having arrived at Miami Intemational Airport in Miami-Dade County in the 

Southem District of Florida on March 30, 2006, and having remained in Miami-Dade County in the 

Southem District of Florida through and including the filing date of this Indictment. 

4. As used in this Indictment and as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2340, "torture" means an act 

committed by a person acting under color oflaw specifically intended to inflict severe physical pain 

or suffering (other than pain or suffering incidental to lawful sanctions) upon another person within 

his custody and physical control. 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

At all times relevant to this Indictment: 

1. The Republic of Liberia (hereinafter "Liberia") was a country located in West Africa, 

sharing borders with the countries of Guinea, Sierra Leone and the Ivory Coast. 

2. The capital of Liberia was the city of Monrovia, Liberia. 

3. The President of Liberia was Charles McArthur Taylor. 

4. The offices and official residence of the President of Liberia were located in Monrovia 

in a building known as the Executive Mansion. 

S. The personal residence of Charles McArthur Taylor was located in a compound known 

as Whiteflower, in the Congotown section of Monrovia. 

6. The defendant, ROY M. BELFAST, Jr., a/kla "Chuckie Taylor," a/kla "Charles 

Taylor, Jr.," a/kla "Charles Taylor II," a/kla "Charles McArther Emmanuel," was the son 

of Charles McArthur Taylor, the President of Liberia. 
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7. The national military for Liberia was the Armed Forces of Liberia ("AFL"). 

8. The national police force for Liberia was the Liberian National Police ("LNP"). 

9. Liberia also had an armed security force known as the Special Security Service ("SSS") 

with responsibilities that included combating armed rebel groups and providing security for 

government officials. 

1 O. Liberia also had an armed security force known as the Antiterrorist Unit ("A TU") with 

responsibilities that included providing security for the President. 

11. During 2002, the defendant, ROY M. BELFAST, Jr., a/kla "Chuckie Taylor," a/kla 

"Charles Taylor, Jr.," a/kla "Charles Taylor II," a/kla "Charles McArther Emmanuel," had 

authority to command members ofthe Antiterrorist Unit. 

12. During 2002, the defendant, ROYM. BELFAST, Jr., a/kla "Chuckie Taylor," a/kla 

"Charles Taylor, Jr.," a/kla "Charles Taylor II," a/kla "Charles Emmanuel," participated in 

joint activities of Liberian security forces, including the Antiterrorist Unit, the Special Security 

Service and the Liberian National Police. 

13. During 2002, Liberia had both non-violent groups and armed rebel groups opposed to 

the Taylor presidency. 

COUNT ONE 

1. Paragraphs 1-4 of the Introductory Allegations portion of this Indictment and 

Paragraphs 1-13 ofthe General Allegations portion ofthis Indictment are realleged and incorporated 

by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

2. On or about July 24, 2002, while outside of the United States and in Liberia, the 

defendant, 
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ROY M. BELFAST, JR., 
a/kla "Chuckie Taylor," 

a/kJa "Charles Taylor, Jr.," 
a/kla "Charles Taylor II," 

a/kJa "Charles McArther Emmanuel," 

did knowingly conspire with others known and unknown to the Grand Jury to commit torture, in 

that the defendant and others conspired to commit acts, under the color oflaw, with the specific 

intent to inflict severe physical pain and suffering upon a person known to the grand jury (referred 

to herein as "the victim") within their custody and physical controL 

Object of the Conspiracy 

It was the object of the conspiracy to obtain information from the victim about actual, perceived or 

potential opponents of the Taylor presidency including by committing torture, in violation of Title 

18, United States Code, Sections 2340A and 2340(1). 

Acts In Furtherance Of The Conspiracy 

In furtherance of the conspiracy and to accomplish its purpose and objects, at least one of 

the conspirators committed, or caused to be committed, outside ofthe United States, at least one 

of the following acts, among others: 

L On or about July 24, 2002, members of the Antiterrorist Unit and the Liberian National 

Police detained and abducted the victim from the victim's home. 

2. On or about July 24, 2002, members of the Liberian National Police and others 

transported the victim to various locations, finally arriving at Whiteflower, the residence of Charles 

McArthur Taylor. 
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3. On or about July 24,2002, the defendant, ROY M. BELFAST, Jr., a/kla "Chuckie 

Taylor," a/kla "Charles Taylor, Jr.," a/kla "Charles Taylor II," a/kla "Charles McArther 

Emmanuel," observed questioning of the victim at White flower. 

4. On or about July 24, 2002, the victim was transported for continued interrogation to 

the residence of a co-conspirator who was a member of the Special Security Service (referred to 

herein as "the co-conspirator"). 

5. On or about July 24,2002, the defendant ROY M. BELFAST, Jr., a/kla "Chuckie 

Taylor," a/kla "Charles Taylor, Jr.," a/kla "Charles Taylor II"a/kia "Charles McArther 

Emmanuel, II left Whiteflower for the residence of the co-conspirator. 

6. On or about July 24, 2002, the defendant, ROY M. BELFAST, Jr., a/kla "Chuckie 

Taylor," a/kla "Charles Taylor, Jr.," a/kla "Charles Taylor II," a/kla "Charles McArther 

Emmanuel," and the coconspirator interrogated the victim at the residence of the co-conspirator. 

7. On or about July 24,2002, while threatening the victim at gunpoint, the defendant, ROY 

M. BELFAST, Jr., a/kla "Chuckie Taylor," a/kla "Charles Taylor, Jr.," a/kla "Charles Taylor 

II," a/kla "Charles McArther Emmanuel," forced the victim to hold scalding water in his hands. 

8. On or about July 24, 2002, the co-conspirator poured scalding water on other locations 

of the victim's body. 

9. On or about July 24, 2002, the co-conspirator repeatedly applied a hot iron to the 

victim's flesh, causing burning and scarring in various locations. 

10. On or about July 24,2002, the defendant, ROY M. BELFAST, Jr., a/kla "Chuckie 

Taylor," a/kla "Charles Taylor, Jr.," a/kla "Charles Taylor II," a/kla "Charles McArther 
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Emmanuel," repeatedly shocked the victim's genitalia and other body parts with an electrical 

device. 

11. On or about July 24, 2002, the co-conspirator rubbed salt into the victim's open wounds. 

12. On or about July 24, 2002, members of the conspiracy sent the victim to the first of 

several detention facilities. 

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2340A( c). 

COUNT TWO 

1. Paragraphs 1-4 of the Introductory Allegations portion of this Indictment and 

Paragraphs 1-13 ofthe General Allegations portion of this Indictment are realleged and incorporated 

by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

2. On or about July 24, 2002, while outside of the United States and in Liberia, the 

defendant, 

ROY M. BELFAST, JR., 
a/kJa "Chuckie Taylor," 

a/kJa "Charles Taylor, Jr.," 
a/kJa "Charles Taylor II," 

a/kJa "Charles McArther Emmanuel, If 

and others known and unknown to the grand jury did, while specifically intending to inflict severe 

physical pain and suffering, commit and attempt to commit torture, while acting under color oflaw, 

by committing acts against another person known to the grand jury (referred to herein as "the 

victim,") including repeatedly burning the victim's flesh with a hot iron, forcing the victim at 

gunpoint to hold scalding water in the victim's hands, burning other parts of the victim's flesh with 

scalding water, repeatedly shocking the victim's genitalia and other body parts with an electrical 

device, and rubbing salt into the victim's wounds, while the victim was within the defendant's 

custody and physical control, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2340A and 

2340(1), and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2. 

6 



COUNT THREE 

1. Paragraphs 1-4 of the Introductory Allegations portion of this indictment are realleged 

and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

2. On or about July 24, 2002, the defendant, 

ROY M. BELFAST, JR., 
a/k/a "Chuckie Taylor," 

a/k/a "Charles Taylor, Jr.," 
a/k/a "Charles Taylor II," 

a/k/a "Charles McArther Emmanuel," 

did knowingly use and carry a firearm during and in relation to a crime of violence and did possess 

a firearm in furtherance of a crime of violence, for which the defendant may be prosecuted in the 

United States, that is, a violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2340A( c) as set forth in 

Count One ofthis Indictment, and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2340A as set forth in Count 

Two of this Indictment; all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 924( c)( 1 )(A). 
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